



HMIS Emergency Shelter Projects

Table of Contents

HMIS Introduction	4
Universal Data Elements	4
HMIS Workstation Security Procedures	6
Data Timeliness Benchmarks	7
Signing in to ClientTrack	8
Workgroup	9
Basic Navigation	10
Home Workspace	10
Navigating between Workspaces	11
Clients Workspace	12
Searching for a client	13
Client Intake	15
Intake with new client	16
Basic Client Information	16
Intake with an existing client record	19
Family Members	20
Program Enrollment	22
3.11 Project Entry Date	23
Universal Data Assessment	24
Prior Zip Code Information	24
3.917A Living Situation	25
4.4 Health Insurance	28
Barriers	29
4.11 Domestic Violence Assessment	30
4.2 Income and Sources	31
4.3 Non-Cash Benefits	33
Recording Services	35
Recording Multiple Services	37
Annual Assessment	39
Workflow Navigation	44
Paused Workflows	45
Pause the Workflow	45

Resume a Workflow4	-5
Cancel the Workflow	7
Edit the Enrollment	8
Exit the Enrollment	9
3.11 Project Exit Date5	1
3.12 Destination	1
Exit Assessment5	2
HMIS Reports	4
HMIS Universal Data Quality Report5	5
Clients Served Report5	8
Clients in Programs Report	2
Export as Excel Data	4
Support Tickets	5
Submitting a Ticket	5
Support Workspace	6

HMIS Introduction

A Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) is the information system designated by a local Continuum of Care (CoC) to comply with the requirements of CoC Program interim rule 24 CFR 578. It is a locally-administered data system used to record and analyze client, service, and housing data for individuals and families who are homeless or at risk of homelessness.

In 2010 the U.S. Interagency Council on Homelessness (USICH) affirmed HMIS as the official method of measuring outcomes in its *Opening Doors: Federal Strategic Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness.* Since then many of the federal agencies that provide McKinney-Vento Act and other sources of funding for services to specific homeless populations have joined together and are working with HUD to coordinate the effort.

HMIS is now used by the federal partners and their respective programs in the effort to end homelessness, which includes:

- U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
- U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
- U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs

Universal Data Elements

HMIS Universal Data Elements are elements required to be collected by all projects participating in HMIS, regardless of funding source.

The Universal Data Elements establish the baseline data collection requirements for all contributing CoC projects. They are the basis for producing unduplicated estimates of the number of people experiencing homelessness, accessing services from homeless assistance projects, basic demographic characteristics of people experiencing homeless, and patterns of service use, including information on shelter stays and homelessness over time.

The Universal Data Elements are the foundation on which the Annual Homeless Assessment Report (AHAR) is developed. The AHAR provides Congress the national estimates of the current state of homelessness across the United States and the use of homeless assistance programs. It is used locally to inform state and local communities on how their specific homeless information compares nationally. The AHAR is used by the U.S. Interagency Council on Homelessness to measure progress towards goals specified in *Opening Doors* and by all of the federal partners to inform homelessness policy. Universal Data Elements also help local communities to better target resources, and position programs to end homelessness. The following are the Universal Data Elements:

3.1	Name	3.917	Living Situation
3.2	Social Security Number	3.10	Project Entry Date
3.3	Date of Birth	3.11	Project Exit Date
3.4	Race	3.12	Destination
3.5	Ethnicity	3.13	Personal ID
3.6	Gender	3.14	Household ID
3.7	Veteran Status	3.15	Relationship to Head
3.8	Disabling Condition		Household
		3.16	Client Location

Program Specific Data Elements are client level data elements required by a specific Federal program or program component.

Emergency Shelter projects require the collection of the following Program-Specific Data Elements in addition to the Universal Data Elements:

4.2	Income and Sources	4.7	Chronic Health Condition
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits	4.8	HIV/AIDS
4.4	Health Insurance	4.9	Mental Health Problem
4.5	Physical Disability	4.10	Substance Abuse
4.6	Developmental Disability	4.11	Domestic Violence

HUD Data Standards Tutorials can be accessed at: https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/hmis/guides/data-element/ of

HMIS Workstation Security Procedures

Most security breaches are due to human error rather than systematic issues. In order to keep the application and data secure, Contributory HMIS Organization (CHO) End Users must also implement some additional security measures.

Policy: CHO End User's computer screens should be placed in a manner where it is difficult for others in the room to see the contents of the screen.

Description:

The placement of the monitor can play a role in establishing security at the agency. CHO users should consider placing the monitor in a way that it is difficult for others to see the screen without you knowing it. <u>Good placement:</u> When someone walks into the room where the computer is, all they should be able to see should be the back of it. <u>Bad placement:</u> When someone walks into the room, they can look over your shoulder without you knowing it, and read material off the screen.

Policy: Do not write down your username and password and store it in an unsecured manner.

Description:

Do not post your HMIS user name or password information under your keyboard, on your monitor, or laying out for others to see. This type of behavior can lead to large security breaches. Passwords and usernames that are written down must be secured in a locked drawer.

Policy: Don't ever share your login information with anybody (including Site or Project Managers).

Description:

If someone is having trouble accessing HMIS, direct them to contact your Agency Administrator, call or send an e-mail to the HMIS Support Desk. Sharing usernames and passwords, or logging onto a system for someone else is a serious security violation of the user agreement. CHO users are responsible for all actions taken in the system utilizing their logons. With the auditing and logging mechanisms within HMIS any changes anyone makes or actions that are taken will be tracked back to your login.

Policy: When you are away from your computer log out of HMIS or lock down your workstation.

Description:

Stepping away from your computer while you are logged into HMIS can also lead to a serious security breach. Although there are timeouts in place to catch inactivity built into the software, it does not take effect immediately. Therefore, anytime when you leave the room and are no longer in control of the computer, you must do one of two things. First, you can lock down your workstation. Most Windows-based operating systems allow users to lock their workstation by simply pressing CTRL-ALT-DELETE keys and choosing "Lock Workstation". This will require users to enter in their Windows password when returning. Secondly, if this is not an option for you, then at a minimum log out of HMIS.

Data Timeliness Benchmarks

Description:

To be most useful for reporting, an HMIS must include the most up-to-date information possible, on clients served by CHOs.

Procedure:

Information must be entered into HMIS within **fourteen (14) calendar days** from the point of the event, (Intake/enrollment, service delivery, or discharge).

Required HUD Benchmark:

- 1. Client information must be entered by CHO's within 5 business days following the month in which the client was served by the contributory program.
- 2. Every CHO must update client information at exit and/or at annual assessment, per requirements relative to each universal and program-specific data element.

Signing in to ClientTrack

- > Web Address: <u>https://www.clienttrack.net/riverside</u>
- **User Name:** Enter your assigned User Name
- > Password: Enter your *case sensitive* Password

(First time user must change temporary password)*

Select "Sign In"

Be sure to **disable** any pop-up blockers that would prevent a new window from opening, prior to logging in.

*Once you log-in using the temporary password provided, you will be prompted to create a new password of your choosing. The password you choose must:

- Be at least 8 characters
- Have at least one number
- Have at least one non-letter, non-numeric character (such as: !@#\$%&*)
- Contain at least one capital letter

← → ← ↑ ← https://www III Apps): Sign in to Client Tack \$	clienttrack.net/riverside https://rivcoca.sharep <u>D-New Tab</u>			
Web Address		What's New		
	Sign In to ClientTrack User Name Password Did you forget your password?		Enter User Name and Password and select Sign in	

Workgroup

After you sign-in you will be directed to the Workgroup screen. Workgroups reflect functional roles determined by program type. Organizations determine which data the user can access, workgroups control which menu options the user can select.

- Workgroup If you are assigned to more than one Workgroup, select the appropriate Workgroup from the dropdown menu
- > **Organization** Organization will default to your organization
- **Location** Location will default to your organization location

	What's New
Riverside: Street Outreach Organization Department of Mental Health Location DMH 1405 Spruce St, Riverside	Select the Workgroup from the drop down menu if you are assigned to more than one workgroup Organization and Location will default to your assigned User ID Select Use these settings

Select "Use these settings"

Basic Navigation

There are three Workspaces in ClientTrack.

- **Home Workspace** Contains the User Dashboard. Some functions from this workspace include: report generation, user's paused operations, user's support tickets and changing a user's password.
- **Clients Workspace** This workspace will default to the user's most recent client. Some functions from this workspace include: Client search, client intake, client assessments, client enrollments, client referrals and client services.
- **Support Workspace** This workspace displays any submitted issues, questions or suggestions submitted by the user.

Home Workspace

The Home Workspace will be the default workspace when your first sign-in to ClientTrack.

- Click on the left hand Menu Icon to expand the menu options
- Click on the Workspace navigation tab next to the ClientTrack logo to switch between workspaces
- Utilize the search function at the top of the page
- Use "Help" to report an issue or ask a question



Navigating between Workspaces

To navigate from the Home Workplace to the Clients Workspace

Click on "Home" next to the ClientTrack logo.

≡	ClientTrack™	Home 5 All Search Q	
<u></u>	George Solis Department of Menter	Home Click to switch the active workspace (Ctrl + Up Arrow)	
	Welcome Geor	rge Solis	
		To navigate to another Workspace click on Home	

A pop-up window will open that will allow you to navigate to another workspace.

Select "Clients" to navigate to the Clients Workspace.

Ξ	ClientTrack™		Search	Q	🔔 George Soli	
	George Solis Department of Mental F					
	Welcome George	e Solis				i 2
	Department of Menta Welcome to ClientTrack. Y	I Health News 'our administrator can	set news items here.			
	Current Program Enro	3.5			Select "CLIENTS" to Navigate to the	A
	Program Cases Clier	3.0			Clients Workspace	÷
<	DMH HHOPE PS HCR Cd Ou HOME Prc George Solis DN Department of Mental Hi Str Riverside: Street Outreac Ou	ealth .5	CLIEN Herr 9/13/ Male	TS man Munster /1990	Supr ■ ↓	PORT
		1.0 0.5	HOPE PS HCR Collaboration	ve Outreach Program	DMH PATH Street	Outreach

Clients Workspace

The Clients Workspace is where users spend the majority of their time in ClientTrack. When you navigate to the Clients Workspace, the user's most recent client will be displayed.

The Clients Dashboard contains three main sections:

- **Basic Client Information** which includes name, social security number, birth date, ethnicity, race, gender, disabling condition, veteran status and family information
- Client's current and previous program enrollments
- Client's services
- > Click on any heading to navigate to that particular section

E ♪ClientTrack™ ^{Cli}	ents s All Search		Q		🔔 George Solis ((Trainin Help	Sign Out
Herman Muns 9/1 1990 Male	ster	Clie	nt's Basic ormation	;			1
Herman Munster's Inform Hover over the client's name to reveal the	ation Name: Munster, Gender: Male	Herman	в	irth Date: Disabling Condition:	9/13/1990 Yes	Age: Veteran:	△ 25 No
Client ID #	Ethnicity: Non-Hisp	anic/Latino		Race:	White		
Client's Services	Client's Cu Previo Enrollm	urrent & ous nents	Program Current DMH PATH Str Previous DMH HHOPE I Collaborative I DMH HHOPE I Collaborative I	reet Outreach Riv HCR Outreach Pro PS HCR Outreach Pro Outreach Pro	With OverrideHL 3 results found. Case Munster, Lily gram Herman Munster, gram Herman	JDFunded Enroll Date Exit 07/25/2016 07/2 07/25/2016 07/2 07/21/2016 07/2	Date
Herman's Services							<u> </u>
Service	Contact?	9 results Begin Date	found. Units	\$ Total Orga	nization		
Vater Vater	False	07/25/2016	1.00	\$1.00 Depa	rtment of Mental He	alth	
Outroach Conta	The True	07/05/0016	1.00	\$1.00 Depa	rtmont of Montal Ho	alala	
🦯 🔄 🛛 Outreach Conta	act True	07/25/2016	1.00	\$1.00 Depa	infinent of Mental He	ann	

Client ID

All client records are assigned a system generated Personal ID number in HMIS.

Hover over the client's name at the top of the page to reveal the Client ID #

Searching for a client

The first step in adding a new client is to search existing client records for possible matches to avoid duplicate entries. Since there are multiple users across HMIS, users **MUST** search client records by entering **partial identifying information** on the client:

- By partial first and last name only
- By last four of Social Security Number only
- By birth date only
- Click on the "Search Icon" on the left side menu to search for a client
- > Enter partial identifying information
- Select "Search"



Existing Client Record

- > If an existing client record exists, verify name, social security number and birth date
- Click on client record to select the client

≡	ClientTrack™	Clients 5 All mun	Q	🜲 George	e Solis (Trainin Help Sign Out
Q • =	Sam Test 7/1/1970 M	lale 🔔			
	🛨 🔍 Find Clie	ent			🚍 😨
	Use the section criteria fields to narrow your se	below to find your client. To nar arch. First Name:	row the search, fill in more than	one criteria. Social Security Numbe	r and Birth Date are the best
		l internation			
		Last Name:	mun	Any match	ing client records
		Middle Name:		will	list below
		Full Name (Last, First):			
		Social Security Number:		Select the	client record you
		Birth Date:		ures	curching for
		Scan Client ID:	0		
			2 results found.		Search
	First Name ▲	Last Name A	Middle Name 🔺	SSN XXX-XX-1122	Birth Date A
	Herman	Munster		XXX-XX-1111	09/13/1990
	First Name ▲ Lily Herman	Last Name Munster Munster	Middle Name 🔺	SSN XXX-XX-1122 XXX-XX-1111	Birth Date 09/11/1990 09/13/1990

No records found

If there are no client records that match your search criteria, it will display "No records found"

≡	ClientTrack [™] Clients 5 All mun	Q	🌲 George Solis (Trainin Help Sign Out
	Sam Test 7/1/1970 Male		
	🤆 🛨 🔍 Find Client		🚍 😨
	Use the section criteria below to find your client. To na fields to narrow your search.	row the search, fill in more than one crite	ria. Social Security Number and Birth Date are the best
	First Name:		
	Last Name:		If there are no client records
	Middle Name: Full Name (Last First):		that match your search criteria it will display
	Social Security Number:	- 2222	
	Birth Date:		No records found
	Scan Client ID:	0	
		No records found.	Search Search
	First Name 🔺 🛛 Last Name 🔺	Middle Name 🔺	SSN Birth Date 🔺

Client Intake

- Click on the "Intake Icon" on the left side menu to start the Intake Workflow
- > When enrolling a family, always start with the Head of the Household
- > You must search for client to avoid duplication of records
- Enter partial identifying information
- Select "Search" at the bottom of the page



Head of Household

Identification of the heads of household for each household recorded in HMIS facilitates the identification, tracking and enumeration of households served by projects. In addition, specifying the relationship of household members to the head of household facilitates reporting on household composition.

The term "Head of Household" is not intended to mean the leader of the house; it is intended to identify one client to whom all other household members can be associated.

Intake with new client

Basic Client Information

- > Any field with a * is a required Universal Data Element
- > 3.1 Name
 - HMIS records should use a client's full, legal name whenever possible doing this as a standard practice makes it easier to find records when searching and avoid creating duplicate records.
- 3.2 Social Security Number
 - The collection of a client's Social Security Number (SSN) and other personal identifying information are required for two important reasons. First, unique identifiers are critical to producing an accurate, unduplicated local count of homeless persons accessing services in HMIS. Name and date of birth are useful unique identifiers, but these identifiers alone do not facilitate an unduplicated count of homeless persons as accurately as the SSN since names change and people can share the same date of birth.
 - Second, an important objective for ending homelessness is to increase access and utilization of mainstream programs by persons who are homeless or at-risk of homelessness. Since SSN is a required data element for many mainstream programs, such as Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), Medicaid, Supplemental Security Income (SSI), etc., projects may need the SSN along with other personal identifiers in order to access mainstream services for their clients.

BASIC CLIENT INFORMATION ?						
Complete the client's identifying information. Name and social security number have associated data quality fields. Data quality fields are used to indicate the reason full information wasn't collected. Name and social security number data quality fields allow users to indicate when a client doesn't know or refuses to provide information. If the required data is collected then ClientTrack automatically records that full data quality was met.						
First Name:*	Herman	Required Universal				
Last Name:*	Munster	Data				
Middle Name:		Elements				
Suffix:						
Name Quality:*	Full name reported	¥ 🥘				
Social Security Number:	111 - 11 - 1111 🤍 🖌					

- > 3.3 Date of Birth
 - The date of birth is used to calculate the age of persons served at time of project entry or at any point during project enrollment. It also supports the unique identification of each person served. Some data collection fields are limited to head of household or other adults in the household; a client's age is one of the determining factors on which data elements are collected.
- > 3.5 Ethnicity
 - Ethnicity is used to count the number of persons who do and do not identify themselves as Hispanic or Latino. Collect the self-identified ethnicity of each client served. Staff observations should not be used to collect information on ethnicity.
- ➢ 3.4 Race
 - Race is used to count the number of persons who identify themselves within one or more of five different racial categories. Allow clients to identify as many racial categories as apply (up to five). Staff observations should not be used to collect information on race.



- > 3.6 Gender
 - Gender is used to collect the number of men, women, transgender individuals and clients who do not identify as either men, women or transgender. Record the self-reported gender of each client served. Staff observations should not be used to collect information on gender. Users should be sensitive to persons who do not identify as male, female or transgender.
- 3.8 Disabling Condition
 - Disabling condition is used to count the number of clients who have a disabling condition at project entry. This data element is to be used with other information to identify whether a client meets the criteria for chronic homelessness.
 - Record whether the client has a disabling condition based on one of more of the following:
 - A physical, mental or emotional impairment, including an impairment caused by alcohol or drug abuse, post-traumatic stress disorder, or brain injury that:
 - 1. Is expected to be long-continuing or of indefinite duration;
 - 2. Substantially impedes the individual's ability to live independently; and
 - 3. Could be improved by the provision of more suitable housing conditions.
 - A developmental disability, as defined in section 102 of the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill or Rights Act of 2000; or
 - The disease of acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) or any condition arising from the etiologic agency for acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (HIV).
 - A client receiving Supplemental Security Income (SSI), Social Security Disability Insurance (SSDI), VA Service-Connected Disability Compensation or VA Non-Service-Connected Disability Pensions should be noted as a potential "Yes" for disabling condition.
- > 3.7 Veteran Status
 - Veteran status is sued to count the number of clients who are veterans of the United States armed forces.
 - Record whether or not the client is a veteran. Asking additional questions may result in more accurate information as some clients may not be aware that they are considered veterans. Example: "Have you ever been on active duty in the military?"
- > 3.15 Relationship to Head of Household
 - Identification of the heads of household for each household recorded in HMIS facilitates the identification, tracking and enumeration of households served by projects. In addition, specifying the relationship of household members to the head of household facilitates reporting on household composition.
- Select "Finish" once completed

Gender:* Disabling Condition:* Veteran Status:* Show Address and Contact Information:	Male Yes ▼ ● No ▼ ● ● ● ● ● ●	Required Universal Data Elements	
Family Information - Use this section to collect data about a This is appropriate when adding a family member to an exis	client's family. The Family search ting family.	field allows you to search for and select an	existing family account.
Family:			Select Finish
Relationship to Head of Household:*			

Don't Know/Refused/Data Not Collected:

Selecting "Don't Know", "Refused", or "Data Not Collected" is acceptable and will allow you to save the file. However, each field on this screen makes up the overall data quality percentage for this client. Not making a valid selection in each field will lower the data quality for this client and impact overall data quality percentages for your agency and the CoC as a whole. Missing data rates above 5% may indicate data quality issues.

Intake with an existing client record

- Select the client record from the search results to start the Intake Workflow
- > Update any of the client's information or capture any missing information
- Select "Finish"
- If all the information is accurate select "No Changes"

Family Members

Family members are the people who the client is related to. Family isn't always the same as a client's household. According to HUD "[a] household is a single individual or a group of persons who apply together to a continuum project for assistance and who live together in one dwelling unit (or, for persons who are not housed, who would live together in one dwelling unit if they were housed." (*Data Manual*)

- > The selected client's family members will display on the screen
- If there are no changes select "Save & Close"

ClientTrack™ ^{Cl}	lient	s 🕏 🛛 Al	l s	earch		Q			4	George Solis (Training)	Help	Sign Out
Herman Mun 9/13/1990 Male	ste	er 🔔										
Intake	3	🗧 🔚 Fa	mily I	Members							₽	X# 🖨
		The selected associate th	l clien em wi	t's family m th this fami	embers are ly.	e displayed	below. You	may search for existing clients to	add to this family or	add new clients to the da	tabase ar	nd
 Basic Client Information 		It's importan household is for persons :	t to no a sin who a	ote that fam gle individua	ily member al or a grou	rs are the p ip of persor	eople who t ns who appl ether in one	he client is related to. Family isn'i y together to a continuum project dwelling unit if they were housed	t always the same as t for assistance and w d" (Data Manual)	a client's household. Acco /ho live together in one dv	ording to velling un	HUD "[a] hit (or,
Family Members		This workflo	w will	allow you to	o enroll all f	family men	nbers or sele	ect which family members you wa	ant to enroll.			
		E)				The of family r	client's nembers	2 results found (+1)				
		First Name ▲	*	Middle Name 🔺	Last Name 🔺	will disp	Suffix 🔺	Name Quality*		Gender* 🥹 🔺		Other Ge please s
	Ø	Lily			Munster			Full name reported	•	Female		•
		Herman			Munster			Full name reported	T	Male		•
						\bigcirc		SELECT	•	SELECT		•
									If there are Select "Sa	no changes ve & Close"		
										\backslash		
										Save	Save	e & Close

Adding Family Members

You may search for existing clients to add to this family or add new clients to the database and associate them with this family.

- Select the box below the client's name
- > Enter partial identifying information (partial name **OR** last four of SSN **OR** birth date)
- > Select the "Search icon" or use the "Tab" function on your keyboard
- > A Find Client pop-up window will open
- If no records are found, slide the horizontal navigation bar to the right to enter family member's Basic Client Information
- > When finished adding any family members select "Save & Close"



Program Enrollment

For the purposes of data collection in HMIS, a program is the source of funding that the organization is receiving to run its project (e.g., HUD CoC, HHS PATH, VA SSVF, etc.). A **Project** refers to a distinct unit of an organization, which may or may not be funded by HUD or the federal partners, that provides services and/ or lodging and is identified by the CoC as part of its service system.

- Select the program you are enrolling the client into from the drop-down menu
- Select "Save"



3.11 Project Entry Date

The project entry date indicates a client is now being assisted by the project. For residential projects this should be the first date of occupancy in the project. All projects need this data element for reporting; residential projects need it to measure lengths of stay.

- Select which family members you are enrolling into the project by checking the box next to their name
- > To select all family members, check the box above the list of names
- Project Entry Date will populate to the current date once you select the family members you are enrolling
- Select "Save"



Universal Data Assessment

New Client

- Any field with a * is a required Universal Data Element
- > Assessment date will default to the current date
- Assessment type will default to "Entry"
- Assessor will default to the user name
- > Program will default to the Program of Enrollment
- ➢ 4.1 Housing Status is not a required field
- > 3.16 Client Location will default to Riverside City & County CoC

	ClientTrack™	Clie	nts 5 All Search Q		L George Solis (Training)	Help	Sign Out
-	Herman M 9/13/1990	uns _{Male}	ter				
In	take		🗧 🕂 Universal Data Assessment			₿I	2
		×	Complete the information below related to the selected	client's housing status and other relevant information.			
0	Basic Client Information			Default Client's Last Assessment 🥑			
0	Family Members						
	Program Enrollmer	ıt	Assessment Date:*	07/28/2016 💻			
			Age at Assessment:	25			
	Herman Munster	Ŷ	Assessment Type:*	Entry			
•	Assessment		Assessor:*	George Solis			
			Program:	POL Year Round Emergency Shelter 🔹			
			Housing Status:	SELECT	T		
			Client Location - Select or enter the CoC code assigned to will be defaulted to the program's CoC within a workflow.	the geographic area where the head of household is staying	g at the time of project entry	. Client l	ocation
			Client Location:	CA-608 - Riverside City & County CoC 🔻			

Prior Zip Code Information

Click on the "Search" icon for pop-up window of zip codes

Prior Zip Code Information - Enter Prior Zip Code information below.					
Q					
 Full Zip Code Recorded Don't Know Refused 					
	de information below.				

- Enter client's Zip Code
- Select "Search"
- Select Zip Code from list of results
- > Zip Code, City & State will populate from your selection

	🔍 Find Zip Code			81 x# 💼
	Zip Code:	92506		
	City:		Enter Client's	
	County:		Zip Code	
т	State:		and select	
h			Search	Search
		1 result found.		
	Zip Code 🔺 Zip Code 🔺	City 📥	County 📥	State 🔺
	92506	Riverside	Riverside	CA
F	Select Z	ip Code from results		
				💥 Cancel

3.917A Living Situation

This element is used to identify the type of living situation and length of stay in that situation just prior to entry into an Emergency Shelter project for all adults and heads of households. This data, along with disabling condition is used to identify whether a client meets the criteria for chronic homelessness.

Note: Because 3.917 reflects real time data entry as described in the Data Dictionary, the Default Last Assessment button will not bring in any 3.917 data.

Record the type of living arrangement of the head of household and each adult household member was residing in just prior to entry into the Street Outreach, ES, or SH project from the drop-down menu. The living situations have been divided into three different situations: Homeless; Institutional; and Transitional and Permanent Housing. (Note - Adult members of the same household may have different prior living situations)

🧿 🕂 Universal Data Assessment						
Client Location:	CA-608 - Riverside City & County CoC 🔻					
Living Situation - Identify the type of residence and length of stay at that residence just prior to (i.e., the night before) program admission. Type of * SELECT Residence:						
	of living arrangement the client was residing in just prior to project entry rom the drop-down menu					

Record the length of time the client was residing in their prior living situation from the drop-down menu.



Record the Approximate date this homeless situation began. Have the client look back to the date of the last time the client had a place to sleep that was not on the streets, ES, or SH and enter that date.



Regardless of where the client stayed last night enter the number of times the client has been homeless on the streets, in ES, or SH in the past three years including today from the drop-down menu. (Note – if this is the first time the client has been homeless in the past three years then the response is One Time)



Record the total number of months homeless the client has been on the streets, in ES or SH in the past three years from the drop-down menu. (The number of cumulative, but not necessarily consecutive months spent homeless.)

Total number* of months homeless on the street, in ES, or SH in the past three years :	SELECT - SELECT One month (this time is the first month) 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 More than 12 months Client doesn't know Client refused Data not collected	Record the total number of months the client has been homeless on the streets, in ES, or SH in the past three years from the drop-down menu
	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 More than 12 months Client doesn't know Client refused Data not collected	Record the total number of months the client has been homeless on the streets, in ES, or SH in the past three years from the drop-down menu

4.4 Health Insurance

Health insurance information is important to determine whether clients currently have health insurance coverage and are accessing all mainstream project medical assistance benefits for which they may be eligible, and to ascertain a more complete picture of their economic circumstances.

- > Indicate whether client is covered by health insurance
- If client responds "Yes" select insurance type from menu list
- Select "Save"



Existing Client Record

- Select "Default Client's Last Assessment" to populate response fields
- Update and verify client responses



Barriers

These data elements are used with other information to identify whether a client meets the criteria for chronic homelessness. Data collection assists in determining the total homeless population with developmental and physical disabilities, chronic health conditions, mental health problems, substance abuse or HIV/AIDS and assesses their needs for treatment or services.

- > A response must be recorded for every barrier
 - 4.10 Substance Abuse Alcohol/ Drug
 - 4.7 Chronic Health Condition
 - o 4.6 Developmental Disability
 - 4.8 HIV/AIDS
 - 4.9 Mental Health Problem
 - 4.5 Physical Disability
- Select box above list of barriers to select all barrier's; all response fields will be populated with "No"
- > If a client responds "Yes" to any of the barriers, collect responses to the following fields:
 - Receiving Services/ Treatments
 - Condition is Indefinite
 - Documentation of the disability and severity on file
- Select "Save & Close"



4.11 Domestic Violence Assessment

Ascertaining whether a person is a victim of domestic violence is necessary to provide the person with the appropriate services to prevent further abuse and to treat the physical and psychological injuries from prior abuse. Also, ascertaining that a person may be experiencing domestic violence may be important for the safety of project staff and other clients. At the aggregate level, knowing the size of the population experiencing homelessness that has experienced domestic violence is critical for determining the resources needed to address the problem in this population.

- > Indicate whether client has ever experienced Domestic Violence
- If Client responds "Yes," collect responses to the following fields:
 - When Experience Occurred
 - Currently Fleeing
- Select "Save"



4.2 Income and Sources

Income and sources of income are important for determining service needs of people at the time of project entry, determining whether they are accessing all income sources for which they are eligible, describing the characteristics of the population experiencing homelessness, and allow analysis of changes in the composition of income between entry and exit from the project and annual changes prior to project exit. Increase in income is a key performance measure of most federal partner programs.

Indicate whether client has income from any source from drop-down menu



If client responds "Yes," indicate all sources and dollar amounts from the list of income sources that apply

Income				
	Туре 🛆	Description	A	Monthly Amount 📥
	Earned Income			
	Unemployment Insurance			
	Supplemental Security Income			
 	Social Security Disability Income			<u>s</u>
	Veteran's Disability Payment			T
	Private Disability Insurance			
	Worker's Compensation		[٦/
	TANF		Select	
	General Assistance		Income Sources	
	Retirement (Social Security)		and indicate	lj –
	Veteran's Pension		Monthly Dollar Amount	
	Other Pension			
	Child Support			
	Alimony			
	Other Income			
	No Financial Resources			
	Count/Total Monthly Income:		1	\$0.00

4.3 Non-Cash Benefits

Non-cash benefits are important to determine whether clients are accessing all mainstream program benefits for which they may be eligible and to develop a more complete picture of their economic circumstances.

- > Indicate whether client receives non-cash benefits from drop-down menu
- > If client responds "Yes," indicate non-cash benefits from the list of sources that apply
- "Food Stamps/ Money for food on benefits card" is the only category that requires a monthly dollar amount
- Select "Save and Close"

Non-C	ash Benefits				
	Туре 🛆	Description 🔺		Monthl Amount 4	y
	Food Stamps/Money for food on benefits card				
	MEDICAID				ß
	MEDIGARE				
	State Children's Health Insurance Program				
	Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children				
	Veteran's Administration Medical Services				
	TANF Child Care Services		I N	ndicate	
	TANF Transportation Services		E	Benefits	
	Other TANF-funded Services				
	Section 8, Public Housing, or Other Rental Assistance		"Cours	Select	
	Other Source	L	Save	e and close"	
	Count/Total Monthly Income:		1	\$0.00	
				Save and C	lose

Intake workflow for family members

Once you have completed the workflow for the Head of the Household, the Intake workflow will start over for the next family member.

> Complete all steps in the Intake workflow for all family members

ClientTrack™ Clients ₅ All	Search Q	🜲 Georg	je Solis (Training) Help Sign Out
Lily Munster			
Intake	rsal Data Assessment		¥1 🚔 ?
II X Complete the ii	formation below related to the selected client's hous	ing status and other relevant information.	
 Basic Client Information 	Defau	t Client's Last Assessment 🥘	
Family Members Comp Program Enrollment Intako w	ete all in the Assessment Date:* 07/28/20)16 🛄	
Herman Munster Lily Munster	family bers Assessment Type:* Entry Assessor:* George S		
Assessment	Program: POL Yea Housing Status: SELEC	r Round Emergency Shelter 🔹]

Completion of Intake

The intake is complete once all family members' workflows have been completed.

Select "Finish" to close the workflow



Recording Services

Projects can record services that were provided to clients during project participation. Services should be recorded for the individual client to whom they were provided; a service that benefited the whole household may be recorded solely for the head of the household. For each service provided, projects should record the service date and service type.

Select "Services" from the Clients Menu to navigate to the Client Services screen

Clients	ClientTrack™	s All Searc	h	Q		Geor
Sind Client	💦 Herman M	lunster				
Intake	- 9/13/1990	nster's Dashboard				
HOUSING	Herman Munster's In	formation				
CASE MANAGEMENT		Name:	Munster, Herman		Birth Date	9/13/1990
Lient Dashboard		Gender:	Male		Disablin Conditior) I: Ves
👗 Edit Client 💦 🔪			in the			100
Family >		Ethnicity:	Non-Hispanic/Lati	no	Race	" White
Assessments >	Photo 🗢	Outreach HUD Enr	ollments With Ove	errideHUDFundeo	d	
A Goals					1 result found.	
Outreach Enrollments		Program			Ca	se
Referrals			v HCR Collaborative	Outreach Program	Mu	nster, Herman
Services 🖌 🔪 🔪						
🟹 Tasks	Herman's Services	From the	Clients Menu			
Calendar >		Select	Services	1 result found.		
Case Notes	Service	c	ontact? Begir Date		Units \$ Total	Organization
	Outreach	Contact T	rue 07/28	3/2016	1.00 \$1.00	Department of

Note: The Clients Services Screen can also be accessed by clicking on Services from the Client's Dashboard

Clients Services Screen

Select "Add New"

ClientTrack™	Clients 5	All Search	٩	🌲 George Solis (Training) Help 🗏 Sign Out
Herman N 9/13/1990	lunster 🔔			
🛨 🔍 Client S	ervices			91 x# 💆 🚍
The client's service his record.	tory displays below.	To record a service, click Add New.	To record multiple services, click Qu	ck Services. To edit or view an existing service, click Edit next to the
Date 😎	Service 🛦		No records found.	Add New Quick Services
Date	Service =		Units =	s total = Organization =
			Sele "Add N	ct lew"

Service Screen

- Select the current enrollment from the drop-down menu to link the service with the appropriate enrollment
- Select the grant from the drop-down menu to link the service with the appropriate grant
- Select the service from the drop-down menu
- Enter the service date
- Verify Units of Measure, Units and Units Value
- > Enter comments if applicable
- Select "Save"

ClientT	rack™	Clients 🕏 🛛 🖊	Search	Q				L George Solis (Training) He	p Sign Out
Herr 9/13/	man Mu	nster 🛕							
Client Ser	vices 🕨 🕂	Service							81 🖨
Enter the info	ormation abo	ut the service prov	rided to the client below.						
	Family Incor	ne: 🗋				_		Select the current enrollment from the	
	Income	Family Incom	e Family Members	Poverty Level	% of Poverty			drop-down menu	
	\$980.00	\$980.00	2	\$1,335.00	73.41 %				
		Enrollment:*	07/28/2016 - POL Yea	ar Round Emerge	ency Shelter 🔻			Select the grant from	
		Grant:	ESG Emergency Shelt	er 🔻				the drop-down menu	
		Service :*	Food - Dinner		•				
		Date:*	07/28/2016 💷 🔶					Select the Service from	
	Units	Of Measure:*	 Dollars Minutes 					the drop-down menu	'
			Count				Ļ		
		L la March	Hours					Enter the date	
		Units:*	1.00					of the service	
		Unit Value:*	\$2.00						
	D	Total:	\$2.00						
User	Performing	the Service:	George Solis	~					
		Comments:							
					/i				
								Select "Save"	
								Save	💥 Cancel

Recording Multiple Services

Utilizing "Quick Services" is an expedient way to record multiple services for a client that occurred on the same day, rather than recording one service at a time.

- Hover over "Services" from the Clients Menu
- Select "Quick Services" to navigate to the Quick Services screen

Clients +	ClientTrack™ 🗧 All Search 🔍		🜲 Georg
Find Client	Herman Munster		
Intake	🥃 ★ Herman Munster's Dashboard		
CLIENT MANAGEMENT	Herman Munster's Information		
📥 Client Dashboard	Name: Munster, Herman	Birth Date: 9/	13/1990
👗 Edit Client 💦 📏	Gender: Male	Disabling Condition: Ye	s
Case Notes			
Assessments	Ethnicity: Non-Hispanic/Latino	Race: W	hite
Referrals	Herman's Enrollments		
Services	Quick Services	1 result found.	
Enrollments	Enrollment Case Description Members	Enroll Date Exit Date Organization	
🔏 Family Members 💦 🔪	Current POL Year Round Emergency Shelter 2	07/28/2016 Path Of Life M	inistries
WIP Move to housing			
	From the Clients Mer Hover over "Services Select "Quick Service	nu 5" •s"	

Note: Quick Services can also be accessed by clicking on Quick Services from the Client Services Screen

Quick Service Screen

- Select the appropriate Service Screen Filter from the Service Screen drop-down menu to populate a list of services by category
- Enter the date of the service(s)
- Select the grant from the drop-down menu to link the service(s) with the appropriate grant
- Select the current enrollment from the drop-down menu to link the service(s) with the appropriate enrollment
- Record each service provided to the client by checking the checkbox next to the particular service
- Verify Unit Type, Units and Unit Value
- When finished recording services corresponding to the parameters entered at the top of the page, Select "Save"
- > To record services provided under a different set of parameters, repeat steps above
- When finished recording all services, Select "Save & Close"

ClientTrack™	Client 	All	Search		Q					A G	eorge Solis (Training)	Help Sign O
Herman M 9/13/1990	lunster											I
🗧 Herman Munster's D	ashboard 🕨 (Client Servic	es 🕨 📰 Qu	uick Service	9							∦ ≣ x ≞ (=
Use the Service Screen Values	list to filter s	ervices ava	ilable. You ma	ıy also filter s	ervices av	ailable	by Grant and	/or Provider . Sele	ct the services the	client has i	received and verify the	Units and Unit
											Select Serv	ice
			Service Scre	en:* Mate	erial Good	s		•			Screen filter f	from
			Family Incom	ne:							arop-aown m	ienu
			Income	Family Inc	come F	amily	Members	Poverty Level	% of Poverty			
			\$980.00	\$980.00	2			\$1,335.00	73.41 %		Enter date of	service
			Da	ate:* 07/2	8/2016	•						
			Gra	ant: SEI	LECT			•		[Select the gra	nt from
			Provider Nan	ne:			0				the drop-dow	n menu
			Enrollme	ent:* 07/2	8/2016 -	POL Y	'ear Round	Emergency Shelt	er 🔹			_
	User P	Performing	the Service((s): Geor	ge Solis						Select the cu	irrent
			Locatio	on: POLM	M 23701	Meyer	Dr, Riversio	le ▼		_	drop-down r	nenu
						16	results found.					
			Service* Material (U Boods (0)	Jnit Type 🔺		Units* 🔺	Unit Value* 🔺	Total 🔺 Help 🔺			
			Basic Need	is [Dollars	T	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00			
			Blanket(s)	[Dollars	۲	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00			
			Christmas	Baskets [Dollars	۲	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00		-	_
			Clothing	ſ	Dollars	۲	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00		Select serv	lices
			Diapers	1	Dollars	۲	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00		from the me	nu list
			Dog Food/0	Cat Food (Count	•	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00			
			Hygiene Kit	t (Count	۲	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00			
			Material Go	bods [Dollars	•	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00		Select	
			Sunscreen		Count	•	1.00	\$1.00	\$1.00		"Save	
			- T		0t	-	1.00	01.00	A1.00			
							0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00			
										Sav	Save & Clos	se 📉 Canc

Annual Assessment

Data collection must include an annual assessment for all persons in a project one year or more. The annual assessment is a specialized subset of the 'update' collection point. The annual assessment must be recorded no more than 30 days before or after the anniversary of the client's **Project Entry Date**, regardless of the date of the most recent 'update' or 'annual assessment.' Regardless of whether the responses have changed since project entry or the previous annual assessment, a new record must be created for each subsequent annual assessment such that it is possible to view a history, by date, of the values for each data element.

Select "Enrollments" from the Clients Menu to navigate to the Enrollments screen

Clients	ClientTrack [™] T All Search Q	Georg
Find Client		
◆ Intake	(c) (s) (s) (s) (s) (s) (s) (s) (s) (s) (s	
CLIENT MANAGEMENT	Herman Munster's Information	
👍 Client Dashboard	Name: Munster, Herman Birth Date: 9/13/1990	
Edit Client	Gender: Disabling Male Condition: Yes	
Case Notes	Etholistic Record	
Assessments >	Non-Hispanic/Latino White	
Referrals	Herman's Enrollments	
Services >	1 result found.	
Enrollments	Enrollment Case Enroll Date Exit Date Organization	
Family Members	Current Q POL Year Round Emergency Shelter 2 07/28/2016 Path Of Life Ministries	
WIP Move to housing		
	From the Clients Menu Select "Enrollments"	

Enrollments Screen

- Click on the Blue Action Wheel
- Select "Update/ Annual Assessment"

ClientTrack [™] Clients ₅ All	Search	Q		🜲 George Solis (Traini Help Sign Out
Herman Munster					
Enrollments					81 x# 🔞 🚍
All of client's enrollments display below. An enrol client in a program, exit them from an existing pro	lment represents gram or perform	a defined period of annual assessmen	participation in tupdates.	a grant and/or program. From	m here, you can enroll a
Click on the Blue Action Wheel)⊑ Add New
		1 result found.			
Phrollment Description 🔺	Case Members 🔺	Enroll Date 💙	Exit Date 🔺	Organization 📥	Last Assessment Completed 🔺
Furrent					
POL Year Round Emergency Shelter	2	07/28/2016		Path Of Life Ministries	09/22/2017
 Edit Enrollment Workflow Add Family Member View Case Members Update/Annual Assessment Exit the Enrollment Review Entry Assessments Delete Enrollment 		Sele "Update/ Assess	oct Annual ment"		

Note: You can also access the Annual Assessment by clicking on the Blue Action Wheel from the Client's Dashboard

Assessment for Enrollment Screen

Select "No Changes"



New or Update Existing

Select "New Assessment"



Type of Assessment

Select "Annual"

ClientTrack™	Clients 5	All Search	Q	🜲 George Solis (Traini Help Sign Out
Herman M 9/13/1990	unster	<u>.</u>		
Assessment For Enrollment	?	Type of Assessment		
п	×	During Program Enrollment		
🥏 Enrollment				
🕏 Munster, Herman	\sim	Annual		
🥏 New or Update Existi	ing		Select	
 Type of Assessment 			"Annual"	
nnual Assessments	3			
Munster, Lily	<			

Universal Data Assessment

- Select "Default Client's Last Assessment" to populate the data fields
- Update client's reponses for data collection



- Complete all steps in the Assessment workflow
 - 4.4 Health Insurance
 - 4.10 Substance Abuse Alcohol/ Drug
 - o 4.7 Chronic Health Condition
 - 4.6 Developmental Disability
 - 4.8 HIV/AIDS
 - 4.9 Mental Health Problem
 - o 4.5 Physical Disability
 - 4.11 Domestic Violence
 - 4.2 Income and Sources
 - o 4.3 Non-Cash Benefits
- Select "Finish" to close the workflow

Workflow Navigation

During the workflow process, a left-hand navigation highlights your progress in the workflow.

- Green Check Mark = Completed
- Red Star = Current Family Member
- Blue Circle = Current screen
- White Circle = Not Completed

You can navigate backwards to any completed screen; however you cannot navigate forward until the current screen is completed.



Paused Workflows

When completing a workflow, you can pause the process and return to it at a later point in time to complete the process. The workflow will resume where you left off.

Pause the Workflow

Click on the "Pause" icon to pause the workflow



Resume a Workflow

Select "Paused Operations" from the Home Menu



Paused Operations

> Select the "Resume" icon to resume the workflow

ClientTrack™	Home 5 All Searc	h Q	🜲 George Solis (Traini Help Sign Out
George Solis Department of Mental H			
Paused Operations			
PAUSED FORMS			
The list below displays t	he forms you've paused. You c	an either resume the process where	you left off, or purge the paused operation from the system.
			× Cancel
Identification	Form De	escription	Step Time Paused
PAUSED WORKFLOWS			
The list below displays t designer; or purge the pa	he workflows you've paused. Y aused workflow from the syste	ou can resume the process where yo m.	u left off; restart the workflow, merging in changes made in the
Show Completed Workflow	/S		
	Description	Workflow	Closed
🌗 🚽 🔺	Munster, Herman	HMIS 2014 Outreach W	lorkflow
	Select the "Res to resume the	ume" icon workflow	

Cancel the Workflow

When completing a workflow, you can cancel the workflow process at any point, however cancelling a workflow will not affect the data already entered and saved during the course of the workflow.

Click on the "Cancel" icon on the left hand navigation to cancel the workflow



Cancelling the workflow **cannot be undone**. A warning message will appear prior to the cancellation.

Select "Yes" or "No" to proceed with the cancellation



Edit the Enrollment

You can edit the data responses in a client's enrollment if needed. This is particularly important when updating any missing data elements to improve data quality issues.

- Click on the Blue Action Wheel from the Client's Dashboard
- Select "Edit Enrollment Workflow"
- Navigate through the workflow to get to the necessary screen
- Select "No Changes" or "Skip" to move to the next screen
- Select "Save" on the screen where you edited any data responses
- "Cancel" the workflow once changes have been saved (see cancel the workflow above)



Exit the Enrollment

An Enrollment Exit needs to be completed once a client is no longer considered a project participant. It is important to exit clients in a timely manner because this affects the client's Length of Stay. Length of stay is a measurement of the total number of days the client has been enrolled in a program and is an important assessment of your program's ability to move the client out of homelessness.

Note: When exiting a family, always start with the **Head of Household**.

Clients	ClientTrack™ 5 All Search Q	🜲 Georg
Q Find Client	Herman Munster	
	E 🖌 Herman Munster's Dashboard	
CLIENT MANAGEMENT	Herman Munster's Information	
📥 Client Dashboard	Name: Munster, Herman Birth Date: 9/	/13/1990
Edit Client >	Gender: Disabling Male Condition: Ye	es
Case Notes	Ethnicity: Non-Hispanic/Latino Race: W	hite
🙀 Referrals	Herman's Enrollments	
Services	1 result found.	
Enrollments	Enrollment Case Enroll Date Exit Date Organization	
Family Members	Current 2 07/28/2016 Path Of Life Mi POL Year Round Emergency Shelter 2 07/28/2016 Path Of Life Mi	inistries
WIP Move to housing	Herman's Services	
	From the Clients Menu Select "Enrollments"	

Select "Enrollments" from the Clients Menu to navigate to the Enrollments Screen

Enrollments Screen

- > Click on the Blue Action Wheel
- Select "Exit the Enrollment"

ClientTrack [™] Clients ♀ All Search	C	2		🜲 Geo	rge Solis (Training) Help Sign Out
Herman Munster 🔔					
C 🗙 🔍 Enrollments					81 x 🛱 🛱
All of client's enrollments display below. An enrollment repre existing program or perform annual assessment updates.	esents a defined period	d of participation in a	grant and/or progra	m. From here, you can enroll a cli	ient in a program, exit them from an
Click on the Blue Action Wheel					► Add New
		1 result found	i.		
Description A	Case Members 🔺	Enroll Date 🔝	Exit Date 📥	Organization 🔺	Last Assessment Completed 🔺
Current POL Vear Round Emergency Shelter	2	07/28/2016		Path Of Life Ministries	09/22/2017
Edit Enrollment Workflow	2	0772072010			03,22,2017
Add Family Member					
💕 View Case Members					
🔯 Update/Annual Assessment	Selec	t			
Exit the Enrollment	"Exit the Enro	ollment"			
Review Entry Assessments					

Note: You can also exit the enrollment workflow by clicking on the Blue Action Wheel from the Client's Dashboard

3.11 Project Exit Date

For residential projects, this date would represent the last day of continuous stay in the project before the client transfers to another residential project or otherwise stops residing in the project. For example, is a person checked into an overnight shelter on January 30, 2014, stayed overnight and left in the morning, the exit date for that shelter stay would be January 31, 2014.

> Enter Exit Date

3.12 Destination

This data element identifies where a client will stay just after exiting a project for purposes of tracking and outcome measurement.

- Select the destination response from the drop-down menu
- Exit reason is not required
- Select any services if applicable
- Select "Save"



HUD understands that often shelters are not able to collect exit data. Persons who leave/ disappear without completing an exit interview are to be recorded with an exit destination as: "No exit interview completed".

Exit Assessment

- Select "Default Client's Last Assessment" to populate data fields
- Update client's responses for data collection
- Select "Save"



- Complete all steps in the Exit workflow
 - 4.4 Health Insurance
 - 4.10 Substance Abuse Alcohol/ Drug
 - o 4.7 Chronic Health Condition
 - 4.6 Developmental Disability
 - 4.8 HIV/AIDS
 - 4.9 Mental Health Problem
 - o 4.5 Physical Disability
 - 4.2 Income and Sources
 - 4.3 Non-Cash Benefits

Exit for family members

Once you have completed the exit workflow for the Head of the Household, the exit workflow will start over for the next family member.

- Select "Yes" or "No" to exit the next family member
- > Complete all steps in the exit workflow for all family members

ClientTrack™ ^C	ients 🛊 All Search Q	🜲 George Solis (Training) Help Sign Out
Herman Mur 9/13/1990 Mal	ster	
HUD Program Exit II × Exit Enrollment	Do you want to exit? Do you want to exit Munster, Lily?	
Exit Assessments Munster, Lily Do you want to exit?	XNo Select "Yes" or "No" to exit the next family member	

Completion of exit

The exit is complete once all family members' workflows have been completed.

Select "Finish" to close the workflow

ClientTrack™	Clients \$ All Search Q	🜲 George Solis (Training) Help Sign Out
Herman M 9/13/1990		
HUD Program Exit	You're done! All required steps have been completed.	
اا Exit Enrollment	★ Finish Close the workflow	
Exit Assessments	<	
🥏 Munster, Lily	Select "Finish" to close the workflow	

HMIS Reports

ClientTrack's reporting tools helps you monitor and synthesize the data you collect to stay on top of your operations, evaluate and report on outcomes, and increase funding. Organizations use these reports to measure the effectiveness of programs, submit data to the Continuum of Care and meet Federal reporting requirements.

Reports are accessed from the Home Workspace. Some of the most commonly used reports are illustrated on the following pages.

Select HMIS REPORTS from the Home Menu



Hover over a report folder to expand the report options



HMIS Universal Data Quality Report

The HMIS Universal Data Quality report is intended to assist end-users and system administrators identify and resolve data quality issues. The report compares enrollment data against HMIS Universal Data standards in order to quantify data quality. Users are able to choose whether to include all active enrollments during a date range or select only enrollments that began or exited during the report range.

The HMIS Universal Data Quality Report is accessed from the HUD/HMIS reports folder.

- Report Date Range Indicate the time period for the report. Only client records that fall within the date range you selected will be included.
- > Run Report By -
 - Select **Enroll at any point** to show any enrollment active within the report date range.
 - Select **Begin Enrollment** to show any enrollment where the enrollment entry date is within the report date range.
 - Select **Exited** to show any enrollment that was exited during the date range.
- > **Organization** Will default to your assigned organization.
- Program Check the Filter by Program(s) box to limit report results by selected programs. When checked, the list displays programs that belong to your organization. Indicate which programs should be included in the report by selecting each program separately, or click the "v" icon to select all. If the report is not filtered by selected program(s), then program enrollment will not be required in order for a client to appear in the results.
- Grant Check the Filter by Grant(s) box to limit report results by selected grants. When checked, the list displays grants that belong to your organization. Indicate which grants should be included in the report by selecting each grant separately, or click the "v" icon to select all. If the report is not filtered by selected grant(s), then a grant associated with an enrollment will not be required in order for a client to appear in the results.
- Select "**Report**" to generate the report.

ClientTrack [™] Home 5 All Search	Q	🌲 George Solis Help Sign Out					
George Solis City of Riverside Riverside: Street Outreach							
🗧 🛨 📕 HMIS Universal Data Quality		📰 🖗 🕕 🚍 💽					
Saved Report Settings - To use previously saved report settings, select the Save As field, select the report criteria, and run the report. The save	the desired settings description. To save the current repo d settings will appear in the list the next time you access	rt settings, select Save Settings , type a description of the settings in this screen.					
Saved Report Settings:	SELECT 🔻						
Date Range - Indicate the time period for this report. Only records that	all within the date range you select will be included.						
Predefined Date Ra Enrollments Betw	nge: Current Month een:* 08/01/2016 and 08/31/2016	Select Date Range					
Run Report By - Select Begin Enrollment to filter the report for enrollment all the clients still in the program during the report date range.	Run Report By - Select Begin Enrollment to filter the report for enrollments that started within the report date range. Select Exited to filter by the program exit date. Select Enroll at any point to show all the clients still in the program during the report date range.						
Report Type:*	SELECT 🔻	Select Report Type					
Organization(s) - Indicate which organizations should be included in th are authorized to view.	e report by selecting each organization separately, or click	the 🏈 icon to select all. Note: The list only shows organizations you					
Organization(s):*	ABC Recovery Center Catholic Charities City of Moreno Valley City of Riverside Coachella Valley Rescue Mission Community Catalysts of California	Organization will default					
Program(s) - Check the box to limit report results by selected program. should be included in the report by selecting each program separately,	. When checked, the list displays programs that belong to or click the 🎻 icon to select all.	the organizations you selected above. Indicate which programs					
Program(s):	Filter by Program(s)	Filter by program if needed					
${\bf Grant(s)}$ - Check the box to limit report results by selected grants. Whe included in the report by selecting each grant separately, or click the ψ	checked, the list displays grants that belong to the organ icon to select all.	izations you selected above. Indicate which grants should be					
Grant(s):	Filter by Grant(s)	Filter by grant if needed					
	Select "Report"						
		🖓 Report 🗿 Schedule Report 🔀 Cancel					

The report will display the following:

- Total Applicable Records
- # of Missing Data Elements
- % of Missing
- # of Don't Know
- # of Refused
- % of DK/ Refused

The report allows you to access more details about each data element through the expand icon "+" next to each criteria.

Click on the expand icon "+" to access more details about each data element

HMIS Universal Data Quality of Clients in Programs 8/1/2016 to 8/31/2016						Client	Track™
Report Criteria:							
Organizations: City of Riverside			- H				
Programs: CoR ESG Street Outreach		Total	# of Missing	Ļ	Ļ	Ļ	Ļ
	Total	Applicable	Data	% of	# of Don't	# of	% of DK /
Organization / Program City of Riverside	Enrollments	Records 52	Elements	Missing 0.00%	Know	Refused 1	3 85%
CoR ESG Street Outreach	3	52	2 0	0.00%	1	1	3.85%
3.01 First Name		3	3 0	0.00%	0	0	0.00%
		3	3 0	0.00%	0	0	0.00%
3.02 SSN		3	3 0	0.00%			66.67%
Click on	the						

The client names are hyperlinks that can be used to select a client. This feature is useful when using the report to identify, analyze, and correct data quality issues.

Click on the name and ClientTrack will navigate to the client workspace and select the client's record.

8/1/2016 to 8/31/2016							Client	Track [®]
Report Criteria:								
Organizations: City of Riverside								
Programs: CoR ESG Street Outreach								
Organization / Program		Total Enrollments	Total Applicable Records	# of Missing Data Elements	% of Missing	# of Don't Know	# of Refused	% of DK Refused
City of Riverside		3	52	0	0.00%	1	1	3.85
CoR ESG Street Outreach		3	52	0	0.00%	1	1	3.85
⊞ 3.01 First Name			3	0	0.00%	0	0	0.00
			3	0	0.00%	0	0	0.00
⊟ 3.02 SSN	Clic	k on the	3	0	0.00%	1	1	66.67
☐ Client doesn't know	Clien	t's name	1					
Name		Age	Enroll Date	Exit Date				
<u>Client, Test</u>		34	8/17/2016					

Clients Served Report

The Clients Served report is designed to show data about a client served within a date range. The report aggregates data at a client level making it useful for reporting needs like service utilization by client. The report also includes basic demographic and identifying information for clients. The report can be expanded to display service details for each service in the date range including Service Type (i.e. service code), service date, grant, units, unit value, and service total.

The Clients Served Report is accessed from the Service Reports folder.

- Report Date Range Indicate the time period for the report. Only client records that fall within the date range you selected will be included.
- > **Organization** Will default to your assigned organization.
- Grant Check the Filter by Grant(s) box to limit report results by selected grants. When checked, the list displays grants that belong to your organization. Indicate which grants should be included in the report by selecting each grant separately, or click the "v" icon to select all.
- Services Check the Filter by Services(s) box to limit report results by selected services. When checked, the list displays services belonging to your organization and funding sources selected above. Indicate which services should be included in the report by selecting each service separately, or click the "v" icon to select all.
- Users Check the Filter by Users(s) box to limit report results by the User who provided the service. When checked, the list displays users that belong to your organization. Indicate which users should be included in the report by selecting each user separately, or click the "v" icon to select all.
- Case Managers Check the Filter by Case Manager(s) box to limit report results by the client's Case Manager(s). When checked, the list displays Case Manager(s) that belong to your organization. Indicate which Case Manager(s) should be included in the report by selecting each Case Manager separately, or click the "v" icon to select all.
- Housing Status - Check the Filter by Housing Status box to limit report results by selected housing status. When checked, the list displays possible housing status options. Indicate which housing status should be included in the report by selecting each housing status separately, or click the "v" icon to select all.
- > Client Age Range Check the box to limit report results by a selected age range.
- State, County and Zip Code Check the boxes to limit report results by selected geographical location, only Filter by Zip Code would apply.
- Additional filters Check the boxes to filter by direct services, veterans or HIV and AIDS Cases.
- Select "**Report**" to generate the report.

ClientTrack™ Home 5 All Searc	ch Q	🜲 George Solis (Traini Help Sign Out
George Solis City of Riverside Riverside: Street Outreach		
🛧 📕 Clients Served Report		🚔 ?
For help relating to this form, click the Help icon @ in this application.	the top right area of this form. For general help, click the	e Help Topics link in the top right area of
Saved Report Settings - To use saved report settings, sel the description of the settings in the Save As field, select access this screen.	ect the desired settings description. To save the setting the report settings, and run the report. The saved setting	gs for a new report, select Save Settings , type ngs will appear in the list the next time you
Saved Report Settings:	SELECT V	
Date Range - Indicate the time period for this report. Only	records that fall within the date range you select will b	e included.
Predefined Date Rar	ge: Current Month	
Service Date Betwe	een:* 08/01/2016 🖬 and 08/31/2016 🗐 🗲	Select Date Range
Organization(s) - Indicate which organizations should be Note: The list only shows organizations you are authorized	included in the report by selecting each organization so I to view.	eparately, or click the 🏈 icon to select all.
Organization(s):*	ABC Recovery Center Catholic Charities City of Moreno Valley ✓ City of Riverside Coachella Valley Rescue Mission Community Catalysts of California	✓ Organization will default
Grant(s) - Check the box to limit report results by selecte Indicate which grants should be included in the report by	d grants. When checked, the list displays grants that be selecting each grant separately, or click the 🚀 icon to :	long to the organizations you selected above. select all.
Grant(s):	Filter by Grant(s)	Filter by grant if needed
Services - Check the box to limit report results by selecter sources selected above. Indicate which services should	d services. When checked, the list displays the services be included in the report by selecting each service sepa	s belongng to organizations and funding irately, or click the 🖋 icon to select all.
Service(s):	Filter by Service(s)	Filter by service if needed

Users - Check the box to limit report results by the User w	who provided the service. When checked, the list	t displays users that belong to the organizations you
selected above. Indicate which users should be included	in the report by selecting each user separately,	or click the 🎻 icon to select all.
Users(s):	🗆 Filter by Users(s) 🛛 🗲	Filter by user if needed
Case Managers - Check the box to limit report results by organizations you selected above. Indicate which Case m icon to select all.	the client's Case Manager(s). When checked, th nanagers should be used to filter the report by s	e list displays Case Managers that belong to the electing each Case manager separately, or click the 🖋
Case Manager(s):	Filter by Case Manager(s)	Filter by case manager if needed
Housing Status - Check the box to limit report results by which housing status should be included in the report by	selected housing status. When checked, the list selecting each housing status separately, or cli	displays possible housing status options. Indicate ck the 🚀 icon to select all.
Housing Status:	Filter by Housing Status	Filter by housing status if needed
Client Age Range - Check the box to limit report results b	y a selected age range.	
Filter by Age:	•	Filter by age if needed
State, County and Zip Code - Check the boxs to limit repo assoicated with the selected organizations above. The th selected states. The zip codes displays the Zip codes as: which state(s), county(ies) and zip code(s) to be included the pick list, your local administrator may need to set the	ort results by selected geographical location. Wi se county list displays the counties assoicated w soicated with the selected organizations above d in the report by selecting each option seperate m up for the Organization(s) selected above.	hen checked, the state list displays the States with the selected organizations above and within the and associated with the county selected. Indiacate aly, or click the <i>statest to select all. If no options appear in</i>
State(s):	Filter by State(s)	
County:	Filter by County	Filter by zip code if needed
Zip Code(s):	Filter by Zip Code(s)	
Additional Filters		
Only Include Direct Services:		
Only Include Veterans:		Select additional filters if needed
Only Include AIDS Cases:		
Only Include HIV Cases:		Select "Report"
Other Organizations:		Beleet Report
		Acport Report Schedule Report 🔀 Cancel

The report allows you to view service details by client through the expand icon "+" next to each client's name.

Click on the expand icon "+" to access more service details by client

8/1/2016 to 8/31/201	6					liontTr	n alzı
						IICIILII	ICK
Report Criteria:							
Organizations:	City of River	side					
Grants:	ESG Street C	Dutreach-CoRiv					
City of Riverside							
Name 🛊	S	Soc Sec No Gender 🛊	Race 🖕	Ethnicity 🛊	Services 🛊	Total Amount	\$
		Male	White	Non- Hispanic/Latino		7	\$7.00
Total		Click on the				7	\$7.00
		"expand" icon				George	Solis
ClientTrack™ Repor	ts		Page 1 of 1		8	/29/2016 1:1	13 PM

This screenshot shows both the aggregate view that displays the number of total services and the total amount and the service detail level.

Clients Served 8/1/2016 to 8/31/2016				Cli	entTra	ıck™
Report Criteria:						
Organizations: City of Ri	iverside					
Grants: ESG Stre	et Outreach-CoRiv					
City of Riverside						
Name 🛊	Soc Sec No Gender 🛊	Race 🛊	Ethnicity 🛊	Services 🛊	Total Amount	\$
Client, Test	Male	White	Non- Hispanic/Latino		7	\$7.00
Unknown Unknown, Unknown						
Service 🛊	Service ≑ Date	Grant 🚖	Units 🛊	Unit Value 🛊	Total 🖕	
Outreach Contact	8/17/2016	ESG Street Outreach- CoRiv	1.00	0 1.0	0	\$1.00
Outreach Contact	8/22/2016	ESG Street Outreach- CoRiv	1.00	0 1.0	0	\$1.00
Phone Call on Behalf of Client	8/22/2016	ESG Street Outreach- CoRiv	1.00	0 1.0	0	\$1.00
Water	8/22/2016	ESG Street Outreach- CoRiv	1.00	0 1.0	0	\$1.00
Outreach Contact	8/29/2016	ESG Street Outreach- CoRiv	1.00	0 1.0	0	\$1.00
Towel/Toiletries	8/29/2016	ESG Street Outreach- CoRiv	1.00	0 1.0	0	\$1.00
Water	8/29/2016	ESG Street Outreach- CoRiv	1.00	0 1.0	0	\$1.00
Total					7	\$7.00
					George	Solis

Clients in Programs Report

The Clients in Programs report shows the count of clients enrolled by program and allows you to dynamically expand each program to show the client name, SSN, race, gender, enrollment date, exit date and separate totals for those clients still enrolled and those who have an end date. It also displays the total number of days the client spent enrolled in the program if an end date has been entered or the number of days from the enrollment date to the end date of the reporting period if the enrollment is still active.

The Clients in Program Report is accessed from the Program Reports folder.

- Report Date Range Indicate the time period for the report. Only client records that fall within the date range you selected will be included.
- > Run Report By -
 - Select **Enroll at any point** to show any enrollment active within the report date range.
 - Select **Begin Enrollment** to show any enrollment where the enrollment entry date is within the report date range.
 - Select **Exited** to show any enrollment that was exited during the date range.
- > **Organization** Will default to your assigned organization.
- Program Check the Filter by Program(s) box to limit report results by selected programs. When checked, the list displays programs that belong to your organization. Indicate which programs should be included in the report by selecting each program separately, or click the "v" icon to select all. If the report is not filtered by selected program(s), then program enrollment will not be required in order for a client to appear in the results.
- ➤ Grant Check the Filter by Grant(s) box to limit report results by selected grants. When checked, the list displays grants that belong to your organization. Indicate which grants should be included in the report by selecting each grant separately, or click the "√" icon to select all. If the report is not filtered by selected grant(s), then a grant associated with an enrollment will not be required in order for a client to appear in the results.
- Users Check the Filter by Users(s) box to limit report results by the User who provided the service. When checked, the list displays users that belong to your organization. Indicate which users should be included in the report by selecting each user separately, or click the "v" icon to select all.
- > Client Age Range Check the box to limit report results by a selected age range.
- > Head of Household Check the box to only include the heads of households.
- Select "**Report**" to generate the report.

ClientTrack [™] Home ^{\$} All Search	Q	4	George Solis (Training) Help Hidden (2)	Sign Out
George Solis City of Riverside Riverside: Street Outreach				
🤆 ★ 📕 Clients in Programs Report				2
Predefined Date Ra	ange: Current Month	▼ 1 08/21/2016 ■	Select Date Range	1
Run Report By - Select Enroll to run the report filtered by program enror	oll date fall in the report date rar	nge. Select Exited to filtered by the prog	ram exit date. Select Enroll at any time to show	all the
clients still in the program during the report date range. Report Type:*	Enroll at any point 🔻		Select Report Type	1
Organization(s) - Indicate which organizations should be included in t you are authorized to view.	he report by selecting each org	anization separately, or click the 💞 icor	n to select all. Note: The list only shows organiza	tions
Organization(s):*	ABC Recovery Center Catholic Charities City of Moreno Valley ✓ City of Riverside Coachella Valley Rescu Community Catalysts of	e Mission f California	Organization will default	
Program(s) - Check the box to limit report results by selected program should be included in the report by selecting each program separately	ns. When checked, the list displa , or click the 🎺 icon to select a	ays programs that belong to the organiz II.	zations you selected above. Indicate which prog	rams
Program(s):	🗏 Filter by Program(s) 🖪		Filter by program if needed	
Grant(s) - Check the box to limit report results by selected grants. Whe included in the report by selecting each grant separately, or click the selecting each grant separately.	en checked, the list displays gra 🖋 icon to select all.	ants that belong to the organizations yo	u selected above. Indicate which grants should	be
Grant(s):	🗆 Filter by Grant(s) 🛛 🗲		Filter by grant if needed	
Users - Check the box to limit report results by selected users. When a in the report by selecting each user separately, or click the <i>s</i> icon to a	checked, the list displays users select all.	that belong to the organizations you se	lected above. Indicate which users should be in	cluded
User:	🗆 Filter by User 🛛 🗲		Filter by user if needed	
Client Age Range - Check the box to limit report results by a selected	age range.			
Filter by Age:		Filter by age if needed	Select	
Head of Household - This check box allows the user to choose wheth	er to see all clients or only the h	neads of household.	"Report	ť" 📃
Include Heads of Households Only:	Include h	ead of households only if i	needed	_
			🏄 Report 🔊 Schedule Report 🗙	Cancel

Click on the expand icon "+" to access more program details by client

Clients in Programs 8/1/2016 to 8/31/2016				K	lientTrack
Report Criteria:					
Organizations: City of Riverside					
Programs: CoR ESG Street Outre	ach				
City of Riverside	Enrolled 🛊	Exited 🛊	Total 🚖	Clients 🛊	
	3	0	3	3	
Organization Total	3	0	3	3	
Total	3	0	3	3	
Click on	the				George Solis
llovnon dl	icon la 🥡	4			2/20/2016 2:41 DM

-

Expanded view

Clients in Programs								
8/1/2016 to 8/31/201	16						Client	Track™
Report Criteria:								
Organizations:	City of Riversid	e						
Programs:	CoR ESG Stree	et Outreach						
City of Riverside			Enrolled 🛊	Exited 🛊	Total 🖕	Clients 🛊		
⊡ CoR ESG Street	Outreach		3	0	3	3		
Name \$	SSN Last 4	Race \$	Gender \$	Age	Enroll Date	Exit Date	E Days	nrollmentLength
Client, Test		White	Male	34	8/17/2016		15	15
Munster, Herman	XXX-XX- 1111	White	Male	25	8/25/2016		7	7
Munster, Lily	XXX-XX- 1122	White	Female	25	8/25/2016		7	7
Program Total	3 stil	l enrolled	0 exited		3 total	3	clients	
Organization Total			3	0	3	3		
Total			3	0	3	3		
							Ge	orge Solis
ClientTrack™ Donor	+-		Page 1 of	1			8/29/2010	6 2·41 PM

Export as Excel Data

Any ClientTrack report can be exported as Excel Data for further data analysis.

- Click on the "Export" icon
- Select "Excel Data" from the drop-down menu
- File will download to Excel

Clients in Pr	ograms Report				_ E	x
I ⊲ ⊲ 1	of 1 👂 🕅 🗇	Find Next 🛃 💮 📰	📲 🖶 🚺 🕐			
	Clients in Programs 8/1/2016 to 8/31/2016	Excel Excel Data PDF Word		ClientTra	ck™	
	"Export" icon		Select "Ex from the drop	ccel Data" 9-down menu		

Support Tickets

ClientTrack includes a comprehensive ticket submission and management system. This system enables users to ask questions, make suggestions, or report issues from within the ClientTrack application.

Submitting a Ticket

To get help in ClientTrack, simply navigate to the relevant area of the application in which you are experiencing an issue, and select **HELP** in the top right hand corner of your screen.

ClientTrack [™] ^{Cli}	ents 5 All Search Q		🜲 George Solis (Training) 🛛 Help Sign Out
Herman Muna 9/13/1990 Male	ster		
Intake	🧿 🦯 Universal Data Assessment		¥1 🚔 ?
II X	Complete the information below related to the selected o	client's housing status and other relevant information.	
Basic Client Information		Default Client's Last Assessment @	
Family Members			
Program Enrollment	Assessment Date:*	07/28/2016	Select "Help"
😫 Herman Munster 🔺	Age at Assessment:	25	
Assessment	Assessment Type:* Assessor:*	George Solis	
🖕 Lily Munster 🖌	Program:*	DMH HHOPE Riv HCR Collaborative Outreach Prog	gram ▼
	Housing Status:	Category 1 - Homeless	T

You will be presented with a dialog box designed to guide your request for help.

Select Report and Issue, Ask a question, or Make a suggestion



You can then complete basic information about your request including a description, a screenshot, and information about how to best contact you for further clarification.

Report an Issue			x
Enter a summary o	of your issue*		
The summary helps to	quickly identify your issue when you're referring l	oack to it l	ater.
Enter su	mmary of issue here		- 1
Please describe th	e issue		- 1
Please enter any deta	ils that might help describe the issue or might help	in solving	it.
1			
1			
Enter as describe	much detail to the issue here		
Attach a file or scr	eenshot View Debug I	informatio	n
How can we reach	i you?		- 1
Email Address*	gsolis@riversidedpss.org		
Phone Number*	951-358-6139		- 1
Notify additional	people		
Click "Sub	mit" Submit	Cano	el

Support Workspace

Once the HMIS support staff has analyzed, fixed and verified the solution for a submitted ticket, it will be put into a status of "Fix/Needs Verification." Please take the time to review the notes regarding the solution, verify any issues are no longer happening in the system, and mark the ticket status as "Closed."

Click on the "Edit" icon to edit/ view the issue

ClientTrack™	Support s	All Sea	rch Q	🔔 George Solis	Help Sign Out
Riverside-1170 ESG_Caper Reports)2 George Solis				
C Ny Submitted Issues					
Issues include problems, questions, or suggestions submitted by a user about ClientTrack. These issues can be created by clicking help anywhere throughout ClientTrack. Any issues you have submitted through the "Help & Support" system are displayed below. Use the Status list to filter results.					
	lssu	e Status:	Assigned Closed Fixed, Verify Needed New Waiting for Response 2 results found.		
Riverside-11702	07/21/2016	Issue	ESG Caper Reports	Fixed. Verify Needed	Katie Allred
Riverside-11694	06/20/2016	Issue	Error when accessing Files on Server _ URGent	Closed	Not Assigned
Click to Edit/ View issue					